
Traffic Safety Committee 12-17-15  1  
 

TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 17, 2015 

SELECTBOARD MEETING ROOM – 8:00AM 
MINUTES 

 
 
Members present:  Town Manager Peter Elwell, Fire Chief Mike Bucossi, Planning Director Rod Francis, 
Highway/Utilities Superintendent Hannah O’Connell, Police Captain Mark Carignan, Planning Director 
Rod Francis, School Representative Betsy Gentile, and Citizen Representative Louise Zak. 
 
Selectboard member present:  Donna Macomber. 
 
Other staff members present:  Assistant Town Manager Patrick Moreland.   
 
Others present:  Kathleen White, Prudence MacKinney, Library Director Jerry Carbone, Terry A. Carter, 
and others who did not sign the attendance sheet. 
 
Town Manager Peter Elwell called the meeting to order at 8:04am.  He welcomed Louise Zak, the newly 
appointed member of the Committee. 
 
Approve Minutes – October 15, 2015. 

MOTION BY MIKE BUCOSSI, AND SECONDED BY BETSY GENTILE, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES 
FROM OCTOBER 15, 2015 AS PRESENTED.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Public Participation 
Kathleen White asked that Safe Streets be included on the January agenda.  She said that Safe Streets 
met last week and heard from a representative from AARP who discussed a meeting in Newport to 
engage the community in making streets safer.  Safe Streets members want to present the matter to the 
Traffic Safety Committee and ask for the committee’s involvement and endorsement. 

Monthly Report on Pedestrian and Bicycle Incidents – Captain Carignan reported that since the last 
Traffic Safety Committee meeting there had been 50 vehicle collisions, 40 of which were property 
damage only and 10 involved injuries, 1 bicycle hit-and-run accident, and 2 pedestrian collisions, both 
involving injuries.  He said one pedestrian accident was on Marlboro Road by Westgate with substantial 
injuries to the pedestrian (that incident was still under investigation) and the other pedestrian accident 
was a low speed accident on South Main Street hill near Holstein with minor injuries.  There was a brief 
discussion by the Committee. 

Monthly Report on Traffic Data Collection – Highway/Superintendent O’Connell reported and discussed 
traffic data collected in the month of November from five sites, as set forth in her memo dated December 
10, 2015. Terry Carter inquired about the rotation of the mobile radar device and requested that the 
device be re-installed at the Putney Road/Harris Avenue area.  There was a brief discussion about the 
rotation schedule. 

Traffic Calming Plan Safety Action Items 

a. Marlboro Avenue – O’Connell said that a resident on Marlboro Avenue requested traffic data on that 
street, and the results of the traffic data collected was set forth in her memo dated December 10, 2015.  
She said that the resident and Police Department were notified of the data results.  She said that the 
resident had requested installation of speed bumps and speed tables in the neighborhood but that 
enforcement would be a better alternative.  Captain Carignan said that traffic enforcement in that area 
had been increased and traffic warnings and tickets had been written.  He said that drivers tend to slow 
down when a cruiser is visible.  Elwell said there was limited action that the Town could take in that 
neighborhood, but the residents could set up traffic calming devices so long as they did not interfere with 
traffic flow.  There was some discussion by the Committee. 

b. Parking Meter in front of Library – Library Director Carbone suggested having a free 15-minute parking 
zone in front of the Library to accommodate patrons needing a quick visit.  He said that Winooski 



Traffic Safety Committee 12-17-15  2  
 

implemented a similar plan and he referred to his memo dated November 9, 2015.  Louise Zak inquired 
about revenue produced by downtown meters.  Moreland discussed the parking meter revenue and said 
that meters were installed primarily to encourage parking turnover in order to provide regular and fair 
access to businesses in downtown.  There was some discussion by the Committee.  Some members 
were in favor of further exploring free 15-minute meters in front of the Library and Elwell said that the 
matter would be added to the January agenda. 

c. Signs on Prospect Street – O’Connell said that a traffic safety request had been received from a new 
resident on Prospect Street, who expressed concern about drivers traveling the wrong way on the one-
way street and speeding.  O’Connell reported that five “one-way” signs were located on that street; 
however, in response to the resident’s concern another one-way sign had been installed across from 70 
Prospect Street and a full length stop bar will be painted on the pavement at the intersection with South 
Main Street.  She said that overall there was good coverage on the street indicating the one-way 
direction.  There was a brief discussion by the Committee. 

Collaboration with Local Motion – Status Report.  O’Connell said that a draft Traffic Calming Plan had 
been received from Local Motion with comments.  She said that staff reviewed the draft Plan and sent it 
back to Local Motion for revision, and expected to have the draft Plan ready for discussion at the January 
Traffic Safety Committee meeting.  There was no discussion by the committee. 

Bicycle Warning Signs by Railroad Tracks – Safe Streets Request.  O’Connell said that historically many 
severe accidents had taken place where the train tracks cross Route 142 near Cersosimo Lumber.  She 
said that crossing signs had been reported missing and the State was notified and was expected to 
provide new signs.  She said that Cersosimo Lumber owned that railroad spur and it indicated that it did 
not use the spur any longer and would partner with the railroad and Town on removing the spur, possibly 
during next construction season.  Gentile asked about the status of removing some tracks by the 
Marlboro College Graduate Center and Kathleen White said that the Brattleboro Conservation 
Commission was working on that project.  There was no discussion by the Committee. 

Other Business – Elwell said that five bike lockers had been installed in the Transportation Center when it 
was built and a question had arisen about the use and location of the lockers.  He said that one locker 
was in poor condition and not useable but the other four lockers were being used by bicyclists.  There 
was some discussion by the Committee about the lockers, how they were being used, whether signs or 
other notifications existed informing bicyclists of the lockers, and about other locations in town that may 
be appropriate for bike lockers and racks.  Planning Director Francis said he would look for an app for 
smartphones and Kathleen White said that Safe Streets could identify other possible locations. 
 
There was no further business. 
 
ELWELL ADJOURNED THE MEETING AT 8:55AM. 
 


